
Minutes 
Sustainability Committee 

2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, S. E. 
Suite 1252 East Tower 

Atlanta, GA  30334 
 

August 25, 2009 
 

Attending: 
 
Committee Members Staff Members 
  
Earl Barrs, Chairman Chris Clark 
David Allen Carol Couch 
Joe Hatfield Paul Burkhalter 
Ray Lambert Todd Holbrook 
Jim Tysinger Susan Shipman 
Philip Watt Dan Forster 
Bill Carruth, Board Chairman, ex-officio Becky Kelley 
 Marlin Gottschalk 
 Ray Luce 
Board Members Karl Burgess 
 Mark Whitney 
Bill Archer Jim Ozier 
Gene Bishop Jon Ambrose 
Jenny Lynn Bradley Steve Friedman 
Walter Hudson Jennifer kaduck 
Mabel Jenkins Jac Capp 
Phyllis Johnson Mark Smith 
Bob Rutland Linda MacGregor 
Loyce Turner Doralyn Kirkland 
Jim Walters Jim Ussery 
Tom Wheeler Emily Hitchcock 
 Lauren Curry 
 Dave Crass 
Visitors Pam Earl 
 William Cook 
Emory Brown, Georgia Falconry Association Dick Swanson 
Joseph Seabolt, Georgia Falconry Association Mike Harris 
Karl Ledford, Georgia Transmission Corporation Terry West 
Steve Hein, Georgia Southern University Jan Simmons 
Shana Udvardy, Georgia Conservancy Brad Gane 
Gordon Rogers, Satilla RiverKeeper Keith Weaver 
Katie Kirkpatrick, Metro Atlanta Chamber of Commerce Mary Ann Evans 
Debbie Phillips, Georgia Industry Environmental Coalition Yolanda Fanning 
Nate Hunt, Southern Environmental Law Center  



Sustainability Committee – Minutes 
August 25, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 
 
 
Clayton Doherty, Georgia Transmission Corporation  
Thomas Farmer, The Nature Conservancy  
Tara Vogel, Georgia Power  
Steve Ewald, Georgia Power  
Robert Gordon, Georgia Falconry Association  
Joel Volpi, Georgia Falconry Association  
Phil Zinsmeister, Sierra Club  
Scott Tanner, Joe Tanner & Associates  
Josh Stancil, Georgia Forestry Association  
Doug Cloud, Alston & Bird  
Shirl Parsons, Georgia Wildlife Federation  
Mike Giles, Georgia Poultry Federation  
Abit Massey, Georgia Poultry Federation  
R. Riley Wilson, Georgia Game Hawkers  
William Woodall, Georgia Hunting & Fishing Federation  
Bettie Sleeth, Home Builders Association of Georgia  
Patricia Barmeyer, King & Spalding  
 



Sustainability Committee – Minutes 
August 25, 2009 
Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 The August 25, 2009 meeting of the Sustainability Committee was called to order 
by Board Chairman Bill Carruth.  Chairman Carruth called on Earl Barrs, Chairman of 
the Sustainability Committee. 
 
 Mr. Barrs called on Marlin Gottschalk, Director, Sustainability Division, for a 
PowerPoint presentation of the FY-2010 – FY-2014 Strategic Plan. (PowerPoint 
attached hereto and made a part hereof). 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk stated that the path to sustainability must involve moving from an 
economy built on take – make – use – waste, to one based on borrow – make – use – 
return.  He further stated that natural systems do “work,” i.e., they use energy to 
process materials, build biomass, and create order.  He added that the economy works 
in a similar way, using energy to process materials, build biomass and infrastructure, 
and create order.  He further added however, the economy contains much waste and 
may not be sustainable in the long run. 
 
 Reading the new mission statement, Mr. Gottschalk stated that the Sustainability 
Division partners with businesses and institutions in stewardship of Georgia’s natural, 
historic and cultural resources.  He further stated that with our partners, we lead the 
pursuit of sustainable practices that fully integrate the economy with the environment for 
the well-being of present and future generations. 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk gave three new strategic goals for the Sustainability Division.  He 
stated that under these goals in the future, businesses and institutions are implementing 
sustainability practices that improve conservation and stewardship of Georgia’s 
resources.  He further stated that a collaborative network of strategic partners exists to 
optimize delivery of sustainability services.  He added that the Sustainability Division 
has resources needed to meet their mission of these strategic goals. 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk stated that the following behavior changes are needed for 
sustainability and are being addressed:  (1) Awareness – understanding of impacts and 
benefits; (2) Attitude – commitment through planning; (3) Trail/Utilization – implementing 
sustainability practices; and (4) Adoption – culture of conservation and stewardship.. 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk stated that strategies to achieve these goals include outreach and 
education, technical assistance, incentives and relationships.  He further stated that he 
is working toward improved communications with the Department of Natural Resources 
Board members, the Governor’s office, the Office of Planning and Research and the 
General Assembly.  
 
 



Sustainability Committee – Minutes 
August 25, 2009 
Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk stated that one of the issues the Sustainability Division faces is to 
diversify resources by finding other sources of funding rather than the single-source 
funding from the Hazardous Waste Trust Fund.  He further stated that other concerns 
are little contribution from the private sector and minimal collaboration with other state 
agencies.  He added that the Sustainability Division is up to the challenge of working 
through these issues and providing a positive outcome. 
 
 Mr. Gottschalk stated that the National Leaders Event would be upcoming on 
September 30, and that the Committee and Board would receive more information in 
the coming weeks. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
 


